
Town of Spring Lake 

OFFICE OF Tim IIA.l'Oll 
Kia Anthony, Mayor 

BOARD OF CllNMISSIORUS 
Sona L. Cooper, Mayor Pro T em 
Robyn Chadwick, Commissioner 
Marvin Lackman, Commissioner 
Raul Palacios, Commissioner 
Adrian Thompson, Commissioner 

CHARTERED IN 1951 

ADIIIBl&TllATIOR 
Jon Rorie, Town Manager 

Carly Autry, Town Clerk 
Michael R. Porter, Town Attorney 

Board of Commissioners Work Session Meeting Agenda 
Monday, November 25, 2024 

6:00 PM 
Grady Howard Conference Room 

The public may view the live Board of Commissioners Meeting on the Town's YouTube Channel: 
www.townofspringlake.com 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE -Minister Candler

3. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

S. APPROVAL OF CONSENT ITEMS

a. Draft Minutes of October 28, 2024, Work Session Meeting

6. PUBLIC COMMENT (Limit 3 minutes per speaker)

7. PRESENTATIONS

a. Veteran of the Year Plaque -Commissioner Marvin Lackman

8. NEW BUSINESS

a. Leaders Legacy Recognition Program-Town Manager Jon Rorie

b. Draft Ordinance No. 2024-04 Chapter 16. Environment. Article V. Donation Box - Town

Manager Jon Rorie

c. Personnel Policy Handbook-Town Manager Jon Rorie

d. Water Rates Increase - Finance Director James Overton and Town Manager Jon Rorie

e. Mayor's Report -Mayor Kia Anthony

f. Board of Commissioners Report - Spring Lake Board of Commissioners

g. Manager's Report -Town Manager Jon Rorie

h. Town Attorney Report-Town Attorney Michael Porter

300 Ruth Street 
Spring Lake, North Carolina 28390 

(910) 436-0241
www.lownofspringlake.com 



9. CLOSED SESSION

a. Pursuant to NCGS §143.318.1 l(a)(l) -Confidentiality

b. Pursuant to NCGS § 143 .318.11 ( a)(3) - Attorney-Client Privilege

10. ADJOURNMENT

300 Ruth Street 
Spring Lake. North Carohna 

(910) 436-0241 
www.1ownofspringlake.com 



October 28, 2024 

Town of Spring Lake 
Work Session Meeting of the Board of Commissioners 

Municipal Building 
300 Ruth Street 

Spring Lake, NC 28390 

MINUTES 6:00 pm 
The Spring Lake Board of Commissioners held a Work Session Meeting in the Grady Howard 
Conference Room of the Spring Lake Municipal Building with Mayor Kia Anthony presiding. 

Board M embers Present: 

Others Pr esent: 
Carly Autry, Town Clerk 

Mayor Pro Tern Sona L. Cooper 
Commissioner Robyn Chadwick_· 
Commissioner Marvin Lackman' 
Commissioner Raul Palacios 

Police Chief Errol Jarman, Spring Lake Poliqe:Department 
James Overton, Finance Director 
Michael Porter, Town Attorney 
Jon Rorie, Town Manager 
Lieutenant Danny Sutton, Spling lake;Police Department 
Fire Chief Jason Williams/Spring Lake Flre Department 

1. Call to Order
Mayor Anthon•{de�cfai"Etd·�,quorum arid calied ttie-meetirig to order .

.. ,... .,_� .... 

..,. :t..... 
.,, . 

2. lnvocatfo� and Pledge of All�gi ance
Pastor Vincent �9f'lg gave the lnvoc_a�ion an� IE:ld the Pledge of Allegiance

3. Addi tions or Deie*1o.ns
Mayor Anthony requested to swap the order of Presentations for items 7b. and 7c.

4. ApprovalofAgenda
Action: Motion to approve the October 28, 2024, Board of Commissioners Work Session Meeting agenda
with additions.
Motion by: Mayor Pro Tern Cooper
Second by: Commissioner Palacios
Vot e: Unanimous



5. Approval of Consent Items

Action: Motion to approve Draft Minutes of October 14, 2024, Regular Meeting and Quarterly Reports

(Ql 2024).

Motion by: Commissioner Chadwick

Second by: Commissioner Lackman

Vote: Unanimous

6. Public Comment

Michael Crocker signed up for Public Comments but was not present when addressed. 

Wilbur Graham, 1012 Karen Circle, spoke to address the neglected state of Hillside Cemetery and 

acknowledged various stakeholders' involvement in rectification efforts. Mr. Graham also thanked 

involved parties and communicated a future fundraising event to take place on Sunday, November 17, 

2024. 

Pastor Vincent Long, Cameron, spoke on behalf of the community efforts to rectify Hillside Cemetery 

disrepair and abundance of issues requiring complex solutions. 

7. Presentations

a. Veterans Day Proclamation - Mayor Kia Anthony - Mayor Anthony did not read the Proclamation as

it was included in the agenda packet, however, Mayor Anthony mentioned the upcoming Veterans
Day celebration set for Friday November 8, 2024, and acknowledged Town members and attendees

who were Veterans.

b. AIA. MRF - David Honeycutt. Principal/Office Manager. McGill Associates. PA - Mr. Honeycutt

presented an extended review touching upon the water and sewer inventory and assessment,

explicating various technical assessments conducted and pending. His outline included details on

materials, replacement needs, potential financial strategies, and benefits of regionalization
precautionary measures. Discussion within included examination of available Grants, asset

depreciation levels, and consequential enhancements foreseen. A recommendation concluded with

suggested financial projections over a decade.

(A copy of the Presentation is hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of these minutes -

see Attachment One.)

c. Water and Sewer Receivables and Gallons - James Overton. Finance Director - Mr. Overton drew

together a presentation surrounding the Town's recent fiscal receipts and related consumption of
water and sewer. Notable issues detected were outdated infrastructure, recommendations on deposit

adjustments to rollback accounting losses, and proposed rate discussions. His assessments spotlighted

the apparent shortfall vs. real-time tracking of billed gallons, cost control dimensions versus necrotic

operational methodologies, and undervaluation within elderly accounts.



Consensus of the Board for Town staff to start the process to hold a Public Hearing to increase water 

rates and increase the deposits for all new water customers. 

(A copy of the Presentation is hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of these minutes -
see Attachment Two.) 

8. New Business

a. Personnel Benefits -Town Manager Jon Rorie -Mr. Rorie elaborated on finding strategic personnel
benefits and hiring proposals that could translate into capital as�et development for the Town. The
propositions included introducing cell phone stipends, colas increments, policy structuring to bolster
staff allure, and perpetual impact assessment reconciling statutory compliance with innovative
contributions. Announcements of specifics including ho.liday recommendations and turnover arrivals
in varying sectors of Town labor categories were in�hand. Also, Ms. Autry, Town Clerk, announced the
new Town of Spring Lake app that is now live and available to download.

(A copy of the Presentation is hereby incorporated by reference and made· a part of these minutes -
see Attachment Two.

b. Mayor's Report - Mayor Kia Anthony - First, Mayor Anthony addressed the property of Hillside
Cemetery and stated the rehabilitation is put ofthe Town's legal jurisdiction. Second, Mayor Anthony
stated there will be no First,Friday on Main.for November. Third, Mayor Anthony stated Early Voting
is still in progress at the Springlake Parks and Recreation Center and encouraged residents to vote at 
the site. Fourth, Mayor �nthony acitnowledged-N�tional First Responders Day. Last, Mayor Anthony
took a Point of Privilege and aw�rded Fire Chief Jason Williams a plaque from the Board and
acknowledged his dedication and h�rdwork as Interim Town Manager for approximately two (2) years.

. 

c. Board of Commissioners Report-Spring Lake Board of Commissioners-First, Mayor Pro Tern Cooper
mention�J:j-Jayetteville Stilte's Hom,ecoming that was held the prior week. Last, Mayor Pro Tern
Cooper stated-Spring Lake Middle Schoo,fs Homecoming is this Thursday, October 31, 2024, which is
Halloween, and there will be a Trunk or Treat held at the Homecoming. Commissioner Lackman's
updates are attacb� in the mint,ites as Attachment Four. First, Commissioner Palacios stated the
Veterans Day Ceremony is on Friday, November 8, 2024, and part of the ceremony is the mural
unveiling, and announcict-that ttie· painting of the mural is starting tomorrow, Tuesday, October 29,
2024, which is looking for volunteers to help paint. Last, Commissioner Palacios mentioned the Adopt
a-Street program. Commissioner Chadwick stated no report at this time.

d. Manager's Report - Town Manager Jon Rorie - Mr. Rorie mentioned water and sewer proposals and
compensation enticements targeting crucial municipal efficacy enhancements.

e. Town Attorney Report-Town Attorney Michael Porter-Attorney Porter stated no report at this time;
however, he acknowledged Mr. Williams for all of his hard work as Interim Town Manager.



9. Adjournment

Action: There being no further business to come before the Board, Mayor Anthony adjourned the meeting 

at 8:32 pm. 

ATTEST: 

Carly Autry 

Town Clerk 

Kia Anthony 

Mayor 



l'I Presentation Overview

• Discuss Overall Project Scope

• Work Completed and Current Status

• Upcoming Work/Next Steps

10/29/2024 

1 



l'I Project Scope Overview

• Inventory and Assessment
• Review Existing Mapping and Records 
• Field Inspections

• Water and Sewer GIS Locations and Inspection 
• Sewer Flow Monitoring 
• Smoke Testing
• Sewer Video Inspection 

• Treatment Plant and Pump Station Assessments 
• Water Modeling

• Pressure Monitoring
• Hydrant Flow

• Asset Condition and Value Summary Assessment

l'I Project Scope Overview

Merger Regionalization 
• Physical Alternatives
• Governance Options

• Financial
• Capital Improvements Plan 
• Financial Forecast Model 

• System Development Fees and Rates 
• Merger Regionalization Scenario 

• Final Asset Management Plan and Presentation

10/29/2024 

2 



I� System Description

• Assessments Completed and Results

• Sewer Collection System

• Wastewater Treatment Plant

• Water Distribution System

I� Collection System Description and Condition

• Manhole Inspections and Mapping
lk•rt.1!(.A,fl0NJN'-L.0Y./.EVIOEN NO 

LID_alNOfllON G000 

�ol� 

POOi' 

PIPE_ ,_o,. _ _.,. a· 

Pl.PE_ ,_t,illECTION 1&0 

Pll'E_J_MA1'EIIW.. \l'CP 

""'E.2J)(A_lt.1 

10/29/2024 

3 



1,�
i 

Collection System Description and Condition
• Smoke Testing

I� Collection System Description and Condition

• Video Inspection §f 1 :-: f ·�-�-::H� �� 
�- -· - • ,L ..L--J 

...-.«11.MtK"l'Utt'\•Clln• ••••-• 

10/29/2024 

4 



1,a Collection System Description and Condition

• General System Description

Approximately 45 Miles of sewer lines, 1,025 manholes 

Size ranges from 6" to 30" diameter 

Mixture of PVC, DIP, Truss, Clay and Concrete (Approx. 60% Clay/Cone) 

Manholes Materials include Brick, Block and Precast 

1,a Wastewater Treatment Plant

Description and Condition 
• Permitted Discharge Capacity: 1.5 MGD

• Conventional Treatment (Aeration,

Clarification, chlorine contact, Post Aeration)

• Flood Concerns

• Occasional Violations

• Most Recent Major Construction: Grit, RAS

Pumps and Disinfection 2012, Clarifier 2005

10/29/2024 

5 



l'I Water Distribution System

Description and Condition 

Iii Ql 

...... 

......... 

vro_c, 

"""' 

Mapping/Inspection 

... 

,,. 

l'I Water Distribution System

Description and Condition 
• General System Description

I ,, 

,.(II 

,, 

a...,,,.ic,Ms•-

...... 

Water supply from Harnett County and Fayetteville PWC, Combined 

Capacity of 1.2 MGD 

65 Miles of water distribution mains 

Materials include Asbestos Cement, PVC, Cast Iron, Ductile Iron and 

Galvanized 

328 Fire Hydrants 

Pressure Range Approx. 35 psi to 110 psi 

10/29/2024 

6 



1111 Asset Condition and Reinvestment

• Current Asset Depreciation Percent: 55%

LGC review comments at 51% or greater 

• Annual Rate of Reinvestment

Current Rate of Depreciation: 1.7% 

Typical recommendations for reinvestment 

■ Water and Sewer Main Reinvestment 2.0% = $1,900,000

• WWTP Reinvestment 3.0% = $900,000

1111 Water Sewer Fund Budget

• Total Expenses $4.5 million

Water Purchases: $1.45 Million 

Revenue Collection and Billing $0.85 Million 

Water Sewer Operations 0.94 Million 

WWTP Operations $0.72 million 

Debt Service $0.24 million 

• Capital Outlay?

• Water and Sewer Rates

10/29/2024 

7 



I� Water and Sewer Rates

• Current Water and Sewer Rates

5,000 gallon per month residential customer 

• Water: $51.36

■ Sewer: $57.99

Total: $109.35

State Average: $89.71 

I I Merger Regionalization Feasibility

• Consider Potential Merger Regionalization with Fayetteville

PWC, Cumberland County or Harnett County

Wide Range or Potential Options

Operational Assistance 

Interconnection of Sewer to Abandon WWTP 

Merge/Create new Utility Management 

Others 

10/29/2024 

8 



I� Overview of Capital Improvements Plan (CIP}

• Viability Needs

Aging Infrastructure 

Out of Date Technology 

Operational Issues 

• Efficiency Needs

• Growth Needs

Capacity Assurance 

Capacity Expansion 

• Regulatory Needs

Permitting Changes 

Monitoring Changes 

I� Rate Evaluation

• Revenue Requirements Analysis

Compares Revenues to Operating Costs

Determines Adequacy of Existing Rates to Recover All Costs 

• Cost of Service Analysis

Allocates Required Revenues to Customer Classes

Aligns Revenue Collected with Expenses Required for Various Customer 

Types 

Affordability Considerations 

10/29/2024 

9 



1,� Overview of System Development Fees

• Enacted in the North Carolina Public Water and Sewer System

Development Fee Act approved in 2017 (House Bill 436)

• Enables public utilities to assess system development fees for the

provision of utility service to new development

• SDFs serve as the mechanism by which "growth pays for growth"

• Local Discretion - Board Decision up to maximum

• SDFs potential impact on development

I� Next Steps

• Complete Remaining System Assessment

• Develop Capital Improvements Plan in conjunction with Financial

Analysis

• Merger Regionalization Discussions

• Review Recommendations with Town of Spring Lake

10/29/2024 

10 



1,a Contact Information

Gary Jackson 

Client Services Manager 

(828) 989-3201

gary.jackson@mcgillassoc1ates.com

David Honeycutt 

Principal/Office Manager 

{910) 690-2583 

_gavid.honeycutt@mcgillassociates.com 

10/29/202-' 

11 



ATTACHMENT TWO 

Town of Spring Lake 
Quarterly Report 

Quarter Ended September 30 2024 

James C Overton 

Finance Director 

TOWN OF SPRING lAKE 

CASH & INVESTMENTS BV FUND 

QUARTER ENDED SEPT 30 2024 

10/29/2024 

1 



Town of Spring lake 

General Fund Revenues 

Quarter Ended Sept 30 2024 
Percentage of Budget Year Completed: ZS% 

Town of Spring lake 

General Fund Expenditures 

Quarter Ended Sept 30 2024 

Percentage of Budget Vear Completed: ZS% 

10/29/2024 

■ Actual

■ Budget

■ Actual

■ Budget

2 



Town of Spring Lake 

Water & Sewer Revenues 

Quarter Ended Sept 30 2024 

Percentage of Budget Year Completed ZS% 

Town of Spring Lake 

Water & Sewer E,cpenditures 

Quarter Ended Sept 30 2024 

Percentage of Budget Year Completed: 25% 

■ Actual

Budget

■ Actual

Budget

10/29/2024 

3 



400,000,000 

350,000,000 

300,000,000 

250,000,000 

200.000,000 

150,000,000 

100,000.000 

50,000,000 

500,000,000 

450,000.000 

400,000,000 

350,000,000 

300,000,000 

250,000,000 

200.000.000 

150,000,000 

100,000,000 

50,000,000 

Town of Spring Lake 

Water Gallons Purchased vs. Gallons Billed 

!020

2020 

2021 2022 2023 

■ Gallons Purchased ■ Gallons Billed

Town of Spring Lake 

Sewer Gallons Treated vs. Gallons Billed 

2021 2022 

■ Gallons Treated ■ Gallons Billed

2023 

10/29/2024 

Z014 

]'1]4 

4 



1,400,000.00 

1,200,000.00 

1,000,000.00 

800,000.00 

600,000.00 

400,000.00 

200,000.00 

70.00% 

60.00% 

50.00% 

40.00% 

30.00% 

20.00% 

10.00% 

0.00% 

Town of Spring Lake 

Cost of Water Purchased 

I I I I I I. 
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 

■ Fayetteville PWC ■ Harnett Regional Water Total 

Town of Spring Lake 

Cost of Water as Percentage of Water Revenue 

Last 5 Fiscal Years 

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 

M2S 

Sept 2025 

10/29/2024 

5 



1,800,000.00 

1,600,000.00 

1,400,000.00 

1,200,000.00 

1,000,000.00 

800,000.00 

600,000.00 

400,000.00 

200,000.00 

Town of Spring Lake 

Water & Sewer Accounts Receivable 

Quarter Ended Sept 30 2024 

Town of Spring Lake 

Accounts Receivable & Allowance for Bad Debts 

Last S Fiscal Years 

I II 

■ Current

31-60 Days

61-90 Days

> 90 Days

50,950.22, 3%1 

20,687.76, 1%, 

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 Sept2024 

■ > 90 Days ■ Total Accounts Receivable

10/29/2024 

6 



200,000.00 

180,000.00 

160,000.00 

140,000.00 

120,000.00 

100,000.00 

80,000.00 

60,000.00 

40,000 00 

20,000.00 

Town of Spring Lake 

Bad Debt Expense • Increase in AR> 90 Days Past Due 

Last 4 Fiscal Years 

2021 20.n 7023 .?024 

I 
Sept 2024 

Recommendation to Increase Customer Deposits 

Water& 
Sewer Bill 5000 Water 
Gallons Rate 

Flat Rate 

Tier 1 0-3,000 8.05 

Tier 2 3,001 • 6,000 9.06 

Total Bill 

Customer Deposit 

Home Owner 

Tenants/ Renter 

Sewer 
Rate Water 8ill 

9.09 

7.76 24.15 

8.71 18.12 

51.36 

Current Recommended 

$ 50.00 $ 200.00 

$ 100.00 $ 200.00 

Sewer Bill Total 

17.29 26.38 

23.28 47.43 

17,42 35.54 

57.99 109.35 

1Q/29/2Q2l 

7 



Companson 

$70,000.00 

$60,000.00 

$50,000.00 

$40,000.00 

$30,000.00 

$20,000.00 

$10,000.00 

S-
Starlina Groop 
Salary 

Medical Denlal Vision 
life 

Holiday long..,ty 

■ Police Officer $48,148.3 $9,160.80 $401.76 S66.96 S245.00 $2,252.64 $50.00 

■ WWTP Superinterdent $47,915.1 $9,160.80 $401.76 $66.96 $235.92 $2,396.16 $50.00 

Current 1% Raise 

Police Officer Police Officer 
Starting Salary $48,148.38 $ 481.48 Starting Salary $ 48,629.86 
Medical $ 9,160.80 Medical $ 9,160.80 
Dental $ 401.76 Dental $ 401.76 
Vision $ 66.96 Vision $ 66.96 
Group Life $ 245.00 Group life $ 245.00 
Holiday $ 2,252.64 Holiday $ 2,252.64 
longevity $ 50.00 longevity s 50.00 
NCLGRS(lS.04%) $ 7,241.52 NClGRS(15,04) $ 7,313.93 
401k(5%) $ 2,407.42 401k (5%) $ 2,431.49 
FICA(7.65%) $ 3,683.35 FICA 17 .65%) $ 3,720.18 
Total $73,657.83 Total $ 74,272.63 

Pay Grade 90 Pay Grade 90 

Rate of Pay $ 21.66 Rate of Pay $ 21.88 

t2,223/YR) $ 21.66 (2,223/YR) $ 21.88 

• 

NCI.GRS 401k 

ATTACHMENT THREE 

FICA Total 

$7,241.52 $2,407.42 $3,683.35 $73.657.8 

$6.550.01 S· $3,665.51 $70,442 .. 3 

10/29/2024 

1% 2% 3% 

$ 481.48 $ 962.97 $1,444.45 

$ $ $ 

$ $ $ 
$ $ $ 

$ $ $ 

$ $ $ 

$ $ $ 

$ 72.42 $ 144.83 $ 217.25 

$ 24.07 $ 48.15 $ 72.22 

$ 36.83 $ 73.67 $ 110.50 

$ 614.81 $1,473.16 $2,209.73 

1 





ATTACHMENT FOUR 

Clean Up November 02, 2024 

8 to 11 AM Southwinds Plaza, come on out and help clean up our town or your neighborhood 

This year alone we have taken 6,400 pounds of debris of the streets of Spring Lake that is over 3 tons 

All of this was done by 71 volunteers. Thank You to ALL who came out and helped or continue to help! 

Veterans Day Ceremony 

Friday November 8, 2024, 11 AM at Stitch-In-Time, 412 Main St. 

Everyone is invited 

We could use volunteers to assist with set up and tear down. Set up begins at 830 am. If you can help, 

we appreciate it 

Veteran of the Year 2024 

Will be announced the 2024 Spring Lake Veteran of the Year at the ceremony. This honoree will be 

joining SGM (Ret) Charles Miller and GySgt (Ret) George Reed 

Banner Program 

Banners will be coming down after Veterans Day, come by town hall to collect your banner, clean it and 

store it until May 2025 when you bring it back to be flown again. This was a very successful Banner 

Program! Thanks to ALL who participated! We will soon begin our 2025 campaign so if you are 

interested in having a banner flown, information will be coming out in the near future. 

Veterans Park Update 

Things are a changing at Veterans Park! Where we have come from -

Diseased trees removed and stumps ground 

Platform fixed 

New electrical box and lights 

Ground is being leveled (won't be flat but fixing the slope) 

Walking path is being installed 



Board of Commissioners Agenda Cover Sheet 

Meetine Date 
November 25, 2024 

Item Title 
Veteran of the Year Plaque 

Presenter 
Commissioner Marvin Lackman 

Summary/Description 

Aeenda Location 
Introductions & Special Presentations 

Commissioner Lackman will present the inaugural Veteran of the Year plaque, recognizing a distinguished 

individual for their exemplary service and contributions to the Veteran community. This annual honor, 

starting in 2023, aims to celebrate the sacrifices and achievements of Veterans, highlighting their dedication 

and impact on society, emphasizing the importance of acknowledging and supporting those who have served, 

fostering a sense of pride and appreciation within the community. 

The plaque will be mounted in the boardroom for public view. 

Requested Action 
Informational Only 

Fundin& Source (lfApplicable)i 
N/A 

.ens.ti N/A Yes □ No 181 

Additional Documents to be Included in Aeenda Packet 
PowerPoint of past and current Veteran of the Year 



11/18/2024 

Charlie Miller 

2023 

2024 



11/18/2024 

Jennifer Alexander 

2025 

2 



Board of Commissioners Agenda Cover Sheet 

Meetin& Pate 
November 25, 2024 

Item Title 
Leaders Legacy Recognition Program 

Presenter 
Town Manager Jon Rorie 

Summary/Description 

A&:enda Location 
New Business 

The Town of Spring Lake should consider participating in the Leaders Legacy Recognition Program for several 
compelling reasons: 

1. Community Engagement: Participation in the program can foster greater community involvement by
recognizing leaders and encouraging residents to engage in civic activities.

2. Promotion of Positive Values: The program emphasizes leadership qualities such as integrity, service,
and commitment to the community, which can inspire others to follow suit and contribute positively
to the Town.

3. Recognition of Achievements: By highlighting the accomplishments of local leaders, the Town can
boost morale and pride among residents, showcasing the Town's strengths and the contributions of
its citizens.

4. Attraction of Resources: Being part of a recognized program may attract attention from potential
sponsors, grants, and initiatives that can benefit the Town and its projects.

5. Enhanced Reputation: Participation can elevate the Town's profile, portraying it as a proactive
community dedicated to leadership and development, which can be attractive to new residents and
businesses.

In summary, the Leaders Legacy Recognition Program offers the Town of Spring Lake a platform to celebrate 
its leaders, enhance community spirit, and build a brighter future through collaboration and recognition. 

Requested Action 
Approval 

Fundio&: Source (If Applicable): 
N/A 

CD.Hi N/A Yes □ No 181 

Additional Documents to he Included in A&enda Packet 
Leaders Legacy Bench Rules 
Leaders Legacy Program 



Leaders Legacy Recognition Program 

The Town of Spring Lake was built on the contributions of many citizens, past and present. The 

Town continues to be shaped and molded by the contributions of our residents and benefactors. 

Significant past, present and future contributions deserve to be recognized in some tangible and 

tong-lasting form. The Leader's Legacy Recognition Program provides an avenue for this 

recognition. 

Please complete and return the nomination form to: 

Town of Spring Lake 

Attention: Town Clerk 

300 Ruth Street 

Spring Lake, NC 28390 

Or you can email to clerk@townofspringlake.com. For more information, call the Town Clerk at 

(910) 985-1834.

Under the Leader's Legacy Recognition Program, an individual is recognized for significant 

contributions by placement of a bench on public property within (or owned by) the Town of Spring 

Lake. A bench will include a plaque identifying the individual for whom the bench is placed. A 

dedication ceremony led and attended by Town officials will formally introduce the bench and 

provide an opportunity for public recognition. 

Benefits 

The Leader's Legacy Recognition Program provides a vehicle of appropriate magnitude to 

recognize individuals in various locations for many years to come. Initiation and maintenance 

costs are nominal yet the program will provide a long - lasting tribute to individuals' 

contributions. Further, by virtue of the public recognition associated with the dedication of a 

bench, the program also encourages additional contributions by residents. 

Locations 

The Town of Spring Lake has many locations that could benefit from the addition of benches. 

Town parks, green space, and municipal buildings, such as Town Hall, are among the possible sites 

for benches. Additionally, sidewalk areas in front of certain commercial/private properties, such 

as the downtown area, may serve as an appropriate location for benches. 

Eligibility and Selection Criteria 

Past and present residents and notable benefactors of the Town of Spring Lake, living or deceased, 

will be considered for recognition. Individuals recognized by the Leader's Legacy Recognition 

Program, are by definition, those of integrity and strong character. The Town desires to hold up 

as model citizens for those who have not only made significant contributions to the Town, but 



who have also demonstrated by their positive actions and words that they are worthy of 

representing the Town of Spring Lake in the positive manner desired by all. 

Candidates must be citizens in good standing and must have one or more significant contributions 

to the Town. A "significant contribution" is subjective; however, a significant contribution 

generally improves the quality of life for all citizens of the Town in some manner. The Board of 

Commissioners will make the final determination of whether a contribution is significant for 

purposes of considering a candidate for recognition via this Leader's Legacy Recognition Program. 

Revocation 

By ensuring a high standard for the Program, the Town ensures only positive role models are 

continually recognized. Individuals who, subsequent to recognition with a bench, are determined 

to be ineligible for a bench due to revelations of questionable character, integrity or any other 

reasonable concern of the Town, will have their bench revoked. Such revelations include those 

events that occurred before or after recognition via the Leader's Legacy Recognition Program. 

Revocation will occur at the action of the Town's Board of Commissioners. 

Individuals who have been honored with a bench and later determined to fall out of compliance 

with the requirements for eligibility will have·their bench revoked. T he revocation process will 

include removal and destruction of the plaque and replacement of the recognition bench with a 

standard bench. T he recognition bench may be reused at an alternate location for a future 

recognition event. 

Nomination and Selection Process 

Any citizen of the Town of Spring Lake may nominate an individual for the Leader's Legacy 

Recognition Program. The nomination process involves completing a nomination form outlining 

the contributions of the individual and rationale for recognition; and then securing a Town 

Sponsor that will support the nomination of the individual. Town Sponsors are the members of 

the Town's Board of Commissioners or the Town Manager. Town Sponsors undertake the 

responsibility of preliminarily assessing the proposed nomination and then networking it outside 

of the Town's Board of Commissioners meeting forums for consideration before a formal 

presentation to the Town's Board of Commissioners as an action item. The rationale for informally 

networking the proposed nomination prior to formal discussion and vote is to spare potential 

public embarrassment for an individual who may not be supported by the majority. 

Based on the results of informal networking , the Town Sponsor determines whether or not to 

place the nomination on a Town's Board of Commissioners meeting agenda for discussion and an 

official vote. An individual will be recognized with a bench upon passage of a Resolution by an 

affirmative vote by a majority of the Town's Board of Commissioners. 

The Citizen applicants are responsible for securing a minimum of half the expense of the total 

actual costs. This may be done by with private donations from individuals or businesses. The Town 

of Spring Lake will match up to fifty percent of the total actual cost. 



The Town of Spring Lake will work together with the applicant to determine the exact placement 

of the bench as well as plan a dedication ceremony that includes the recognized individual and 

with an appropriate number of family and friends, Town elected officials and appropriate staff 

and the media. 

Estimated Costs 

The estimated cost as of November 2024 for each bench is estimated as follows: 

Item Est. Cost 

Bench $1,000 

Concrete Mounting Base $300 

Engraved Plaque $450 

Dedication Ceremony $200 

TOTAL EST. COST $1,950 

Note: The costs provided are estimates only. The Sponsor will be responsible for securing, through 

public or private contributors, one half of the total actual costs. These funds are to be submitted 

to the Town prior to the installation of the bench. The Town of Spring Lake will match up to fifty 

percent of the total actual cost. 

Maintenance costs are expected to be nominal as no active maintenance is required. The Town's 

Board of Commissioners should consider some number of initial benches {e.g., two or three), and 

then identify a steady-state expectation {e.g., one or two per year) for budget purposes. Alternate 

sources of funding such as donations by individuals or organizations should be encouraged as 

well. 



Leader's Legacy Recognition Program 
Recognizing the Town of Spring Lake's Contributors 

Please complete the following nomination form and return to: Town of Spring Lake, Attention: Town Clerk, 300 Ruth 

Street, Spring Lake, NC 28390 or email to clerk@townofspringlake.com. For more Information, please call the Town Clerk 

at {910) 985-1834. 

Nominator: Please flll In all of the information below. If more than one nominator, please attach a separate sheet 

with the same information for each person. 

Name: 

Address: 

Phone Number: 

Email: 

Best way to contact (check one): Phone 

Nominee: 

Name: 

Address: 

Phone Number: 

Email: 

Best way to contact (check one): Phone 

Is nominee aware of this application? (check one): 

Town Sponsor: 

Email 

Email 

Yes No 

Nominee's Contributions: List or describe as many activities/actions/contributions as practical for which the nominee 

is either solely or significantly responsible that has improved the quality of life for all citizens of the Town. Attachments 

are welcomed. 

51&nlflcant Contrtbutlon(s): Past and present residents of the Town of Spring Lake, living or deceased, will be considered for recognition via the leader's Legacy 

Recognition Program. Candidates must have one or more significant contributions to the Town. A "significant contribution" is subjective; however. a significant 

contribution generally Improves the quality of llfe for all citilens of the "town In some manner. In addition, candidates must also demonstrate the positive characteristics 

the Town holds in high regard including honesty, Integrity, and strong character. In a brief paragraph or two, please describe the significant contributionjs) made by 

the nominee and Its Impact on the Town of Spring Lake Community. 



Bench Location: Please choose two possible locations for the bench. The Board of Commissioners will work with Town 
staff to determine the exact placement of the bench. 

1 _________________________________ _ 

2 _________________________________ _ 

Park Options: 

Veterans Park 

Recreation Center Campus 

Main Street Downtown 

Private Commercial Properties with Owner permission. 

Plaque: 

Other Locations: 

Town Hall Campus 

Tenhet Park 

Mendoza Park 

In Recognition of ____________________ (insert name}for 

his/her/their contributions to the Town of Spring Lake community. 

*Please allow 4S business days after approval by the Town's Board of Commissioners to procure the bench and plaque.

(Time frame contingent upon the Board of Commissioners meeting schedule.)



Board of Commissioners Agenda Cover Sheet 

Meetin& Date 
November 25, 2024 

Item Title 
Personnel Policy Handbook 

Presenter 
Town Manager Jon Rorie 

summaa/Description 

Aeenda Location 
New Business 

The Board should consider adopting an updated personnel policy handbook for several important reasons: 

1. Legal compliance: Employment laws and regulations change frequently. An updated handbook

ensures that the Town complies with current federal, state, and local laws, reducing the risk of legal

issues.

2. Clarity and Consistency: An updated handbook can provide clear guidelines and policies for

employees, promoting consistency in how policies are applied. This clarity helps prevent

misunderstanding and disputes.

3. Employee Morale and Retention: Modernizing the handbook can address contemporary workplace

issues, such as diversity, equity, inclusion, and workplace harassment. This shows employees that their

concerns are being taken seriously, which can enhance morale and retention.

4. Attraction of Talent: A well-structured and updated personnel policy can make the Town more

attractive to potential employees, showcasing a commitment to fair practices and a positive work

environment.

5. Reflecting Organizational Changes: Since 1999, the Town may have experienced changes in its

structure, goals, and workforce. An updated handbook can reflect these changes and align policies with

current organizational values and objectives.

6. Technological Advances: The rise of remote work and digital communication tools necessitates

updated policies reflecting these changes. An updated handbook can include guidelines for remote

work, use of technology, and social media.

In summary, updating the personnel policy handbook is essential for legal compliance, employee satisfaction, 

effective management, and aligning with modern workplace practices. 

Requested Action 
Approval 

Fundin& Source (If A1212Ucable); 
N/A 

� N/A Yes □ No 181 





Board of Commissioners Agenda Cover Sheet 

Meeting Date 

November 25, 2024 

Item Title 

Agenda Location 

New Business 

Draft Ordinance No. 2024-04 Chapter 16. Environment. Article V. Donation Box 

Presenter 
Town Manager Jon Rorie 

Summary/Description 
The Town of Spring Lake should consider eliminating donation boxes for several reasons, particularly in light 
of the amended draft Ordinance for donation boxes. Donation boxes can often lead to issues of litter and 
unsightly clutter in public spaces, detracting from the Town's aesthetic appeal. 

Moreover, the presence of donation boxes can create logistical challenges for Town maintenance and public 
safety. Unmonitored boxes can attract illegal dumping and become a target for vandalism. 

Ultimately, adopting the amended Ordinance would reflect a commitment to maintaining the Town's 
cleanliness, safety, and community integrity. 

Requested Action 
Approval 

Funding Source (If Applicable); 
N/A 

,Cns1i N/A Yes □ No 1:8:1 

Additional Documents to he Included in Agenda Packet 
Draft Ordinance No. 2024-04 Chapter 16. Environment. Article V. Donation Box 



ORDINANCE NO. 2024-04 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF SPRING LAKE, NORTH CAROLINA; 
AMENDING CHAPTER 16. ENVIRONMENT BY ADDING ARTICLE V. DONATION 

BOX 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners recognizes the need to add or amend the Code of 
Ordinances from time to time to better serve its citizens and business owners; and 

WHEREAS, this amendment was written to prohibit donation boxes within the Town limits; and 

WHEREAS, it is also imperative that the appearance of the Town properties continue to strive 
to be aesthetically pleasing - a long-sptted a.11d progressing endeavor - for the 
economic benefit of the Town's citizens. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED. by the Board of Commissioners of the Town of 
Spring Lake, North Carolina that the Spring Lake<�1unicipal Code, and amending CHAPTER 16. 
ENVIRONMENT to add ARTICLE V. DONATIO};J BOX as follows: 

Section 1. 

ADD Town of Spring Lake Code ofOrdinances.�CHAPTER l6. ENVIRONMENT, ARTICLE V. 
DONATION BOX 

Section. 16-266. Definitions 

The following words, ten,ns, and phrases, when µsed in this section, shall have the meaning 
ascribed to them in,this section, exceprwhere the context clearly indicates a different meaning . 

• ' IP· 
• 

't:. 

Administrative officer means the person, officer, or official or his authorized representative, 
whom the Board of aldermen Commissioners has designated as its agent for the 
administration of this Chapter. 

-A-ppUooHt meoos the _irufrlith:1ej er entily filing an B:flpl�ieR m�der thts e:fticle. 

Donation box means any �!lttended donation receptacle intended for use as a drop-off and 
collection point for accepting donated textiles, clothing, shoes, books, toys, dishes, and other 
salvageable items of personal,property. 

Landowner means any person or entity who owns, leases, is in control of, or possesses real property 
on which a donation box has been placed or maintained. 

�-auu· me1:t11s lhe irtdi,,iaw:d Of eRlil3/ whe a'NRS, Jeases, or otherwise manages and eon(rols the
persoAal1)foperty e&n!;tit1:1fing a doHaltOR bo�. B:Ad ff a sepeFofe iREli•liallel er en1i1y earries aft the
mftffi¼eftatlee, eolleetttm-,8-tld-�keepofthedoftatton belt. �ndivi4u:aJ.or efttityas weH.



Pe,,.,,,i( hBlder means afly person. partneFShip, e�n.�mre. limited- liehil� 
eetnp8Ry, e.sseei&tion, ergani�a.tiO!,, er ftl'l,. ether eniir:y helf:iing a �it isstieEI :f3MFS\¼GRl to this 
artiele. 

Section. 16-267. Yttl-awitl4-,ploeemenl er m1tinten1tnee ef denotion bet.. Donation Boxes 
Prohibited. 

Donation boxes for the collection of clothing and other articles, whether for charitable or non
charitable purposes, are prohibited within the corporate Town limits. 

It shall oe wllawful fof' ftfl�- pe,sefl te 13laee Of maint&iR e Eleflllf!en eon aHmy location ·.vit:hiA the 
Telo¥ft unless done iri aeeordanee with a •f'a.lid-�1)f6'w'iae� ifi-this eR!ete-: 

Section. 16-268. Unlawful to allow unpermitted donation boxes on real property. 

No real property within the Town limits shall allo.w, any type of donation box to be placed on or 
remain on any real property. The Landowner will be served a citation by certified mail that the 
donation box shall be removed within 30 days. Failure to remove the d01iation box shall result in 
the Town removing the donation box from the real property and the Landowner-being assessed the 
removal fee cost. 

U1lless tllherwise exempt. it shall be wtlavrful for aF1y peffieft 'Nhe ewns. leases. is ifl eonfro-lef. er 
JlOSsesses ,eel pro:13eny 'N.ithin the Tow:11 lo 01:1thorize or ello·.i.r a�• doRation OO* � t:,-� 
or remaift en, th-eHeol 1=1repe�e-less deRe iR aeeoffiO:Hee 1Nith a ,'-8:1.id permit-es-pro•.iided in this 
artjele. 

Section. 16-269. Permits. Penalty and Recovery of cost. 

Whenever the Administrative Officer or his/her designee discovers a violation of this article, a 
citation may ·be issued to the person or owner charged with the violation or, in the case of a 
corporation, to any officer·or agent expressly or-impliedly authorized to accept such issuance. Any 
person or·owner who violates this article, or who permits a violation to exist on the premises under 
his control, or fails to take action to abate the existence of the violation within a specified 
timeframe, when ordered or notified to do so by the department, shall be charged a standard civil 
penalty of $100.00 per day for every day that the violation continues. 

(a) To ob�ain a permit Eo opetate-e-tiooatiofl box, att-e�ent mYsl file•e&-eppheatioA vl'it:h the
'.fev,R of Spring Lake laspeetioH9 Department The apt,tlieatieR she.II iAe�utie the VlfifleR
tnnhori�atiort of the property tWlfler or r,reperty manager�g-t-h,e-denetion be,t aR the
property.-A Site liry'ottt er-a map depicting the exaet propese<:i leeatieft ef the tlemuion boM
shall be s1::tl,ffltHed ,,,,1th ea.eh eripheetien.

(b) Pd1 anflt:Jal J!ermit fer eaeh Eienetien 13ex shall be required. ,1\ll permils skall e"lpire Ofl the
oAe yeer�ary-oft.he date of issuanee.

(e) UpOA-deniel or Fevocalion of a f)effflit shall he·1e the rtghl ta Bl)l:)eel sueh e.etioe IA 

aeeorEieHee with Seetien 16.212-.



(d) No moFe dmn ti.1,O (2) EleAatieR eoMes JH8)' �@ permiUeEI fer pleeemen-t Ofl any one lot. IR
the ease oHh��g-eefltfl'6f-�t:llat eoRsiSls ofm1:1hiple �lotted lats.
the IF1speeti0As OeJ3erune,u shall b=eat Hie shopriAg eeAfer of oftiee de,·elopmeAt as if it is
ofl-ly OHe eentiguous lot

(e) The f_lermit holtiet- rilaeiAg OHtlatRtaining fhe donatien 1:,oxu§hall displ�· �m11nt eontaet
inf.offlUtfi01t ineludiHg �e Aftffle. slreet aEldress, ett=tail, et1:d ph(:lne nttmt,er otHh�atioft
box. The size of the lettering for the eontaet iHformation shal1 not be less than twe (2)
i1tehes in height

8eetien. 1, 2�. TFilesfer of permit prehibi� 

fa) No p@Ffflit aRtier tl'le twevisioas of �his P1Ftiele sh�I �e'firttBsrermbje. The autherity a permit 
een:fefs is eent«reti enly on-lhe-permit lteh:ier nftffled therekt. 

Seefion, u; 271. 

{Qt-The �rmil holaer and the rea�pert�• ·oYJft�r4lelJ be hel.djoiall�• attcl§ie'li'eraUy liable aad 
Eespenstble for the fJ'lainteAtlftee'; � and -servieiag of tl:le donatiofl eoK 8:Rd eleai� Hfl 
and remoiw·al ef any doHatieHS'lef-t ett the f)fOflefty eut:siEfe of the doAotioA tfo*. 

( J) Unat1e1uled t:ieaatiaR ho,res shali)>e matntoiAed ifl good eoHditioR aA:cl appeaffinee 
�i'\:te�ag�les. 8:f r;isible FMst aad skall �e e:ee of graffiti. 

� 

(2) Uaau�a�� doR&'tioH boxes shaH be -sff\Jieed Md e:fflplied as Reeded; but a least
�. ar wifhiA fivt,. �ttSiftess days· 0f a ret11:test 1:ty the admiHistrati•1e
offieer. " ,, "

• 

(3) The �en:ait h,e.ltlor aad OJJei:,uar shall he individually and seYeraHy resr,0Asil=.1le
; • fer abatlng-u�emoYi-Ag-a,11 junk. g-arbage. tffl5h..-<ielffis, aetl ether refuse meterieJ

C � �
:7 , , iR lhe area surroundiRg the ttfleUetlt'leEI EloAotieA �ex withiA tv.eRty fin:1r hewrs 

' �'::,, 
• -:, (24) o� writteR or verbal t1otiee from the administnHi're effieer.,, 

, « ' 

(4) The Town shttt¼-ha•,004he fU:llI-1eflt-y te al:lal'e ftfl.)' property in YiolatieA e� thisarde}e
lhet is deemed a f:)f:tbli��neer Sf!:FiHg Lake Catie ofOrdinanees, Ghapter
l 6 Enviroflrnent, Arliele II N1::1i,�¼-Rol4er aREI .lmulownef shalJ be
ifldiYidually IHld se·1emlly responsible fur aH easts for�nd remo•t<iRg atty
jttfl�. garbage.-tf.ash, eebfis, anei e1ller refuse materiel fr:em the area sunwndtflg
the unauenaetl donatien 8-0:'(;

Seetion, 1, 212. Appeal te Tewn Manager. 

fa} Any �efsott agg,=je,,.'ed by the deeision reRdereti by the a:e�tnHi'+'e offieer iR gfMting 
er-4en;·mgen apr,lieo.tion fer a peffl'lit utuler this artiele or in reYoking or-�ftg-le 
renew a permtt issuea hereuREler--me�' appeaj the deeision to the TotJm Manage, tft 
..... ·ritten netiee thereof ,.Yi th the ·uw,·n Clefk ·.vith:iR teA (teR) tlays reeei·1ing notiee ofllte 



deeision of the administrati•,•e office,. The To•w11 Manager slutll hel� a hetmflg et\ Ebe 
appeal 1NithiA th:iFty (30) ealendar days. 

(�) The To•1,n MoMgef m83/ eensiEler any or:-aU of the foHowing factors 'Nhen reaehing a 
deeisi<tA.e-n-tk�� 

I. The nuffleer ef •Aeletie0s, eonYie1i0ns, er lieeiUiy fi0diRgs�
2. Tile mtmber�f pre,.-j eus-r-eir��
3. The number of repeat ·,ioletions at the same leeation�
4. The degree to vthich �rev:ious violatiofls eRdEmgered the public, heal.

safety or welfaFe; or
�- AA� pe0ding aetion-0r investigatiofl hy another agency. 

(b) AfEef �he !;earing, the le1#R Manager sheU issue e. ,•n=iuea ereer. +he order shell be pFo•,iEled 
roihe,appeUan..,�soneJ seFYioe or by eeAifieEI mail, rea!£.ft reeeipts reqHested. 

fe) The-:r'owfl. Manager may affitm or re·rel'Se t.he denial or revocation of the donation pef'fflit. 
If afHFmed, d:ie order issued mtist state ll�al the appellant is not. eligible to reeei•te a new 
aeflftt�-bex pennil--SOOA@r then one year after tke date of the ofder. If R'iefSOO, die 
doflafioA be>l 13ermit .shall be 1etnstateEI iFH:medieteJ� (in the ease of re·1eeatien� or with 
mree (3) lnctsiness--days-fm the ease ef deAial}� 

(d) The determinatioH of the To-w-rt M&Rager sl\811 0e final-etH4le-1:la��.,.

Section. 1641.; 270. Further appellate rights. 

Any party aggrieved by a final decision is entitled to judicial review of the decision. A petition 
for a writ of certiorari by the party must be filed with the Superior Court of Cumberland County 
not more than 30 calendar days after the party receives the final decision from the Town 
Manager. 

Section. 16--2-+4 271. - Disclaimer of liability. 

Liability on the part of, or a cause of action against, the Town or any officer, employee or agent 

thereof for any damages. 

Section. 16..m 272. Exemption. 

Unattended donation boxes located entirely within the interior of a building are exempt from the 
requirements of this article. 

This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 



PASSED and ADOPTED this 25th day of November 2024 by the following vote: 

AYES 

ATTEST: 

Carly Autry 
Town Clerk 

NOES 

Kia Anthony 
Mayor 



Board of Commissioners Agenda Cover Sheet 

Meetin& Date 
November 25, 2024 

Item Title 
Water Rates Increase 

Presenter 

A&enda Location 
New Business 

Finance Director James Overton and Town Manager Jon Rorie 

Summary/Description 
The Board should consider increasing water rates for several key reasons: 

1. Infrastructure Maintenance and Upgrades: Aging water infrastructure requires significant investment
for repairs and upgrades to ensure reliable service and compliance with safety regulations.

2. Rising Operational Costs: The costs associated with water treatment, distribution, and maintenance
have likely increased due to inflation and rising utility prices, necessitating a rate adjustment to cover
these expenses.

3. Sustainability Initiatives: Increased rates can fund sustainability projects aimed at conserving water
and improving efficiency, which benefits the environment and the community in the long run.

4. Debt Service Obligations: If the Town has existing debt related to water system improvements, higher
rates may be essential to meet these financial obligations and avoid service disruptions.

5. Equitable Resource Distribution: A rate increase can help ensure that all residents contribute fairly to
the cost of maintaining and improving the water system, promoting equity within the community.

By increasing water rates, the Board can ensure the continued provision of safe and reliable water services 
while addressing both current and future needs. 

Requested Action 
Approval 

Fund in& Source (If Applicable); 
N/A 

� N/A Yes □ No Im 

Additional Documents to be Included in Aeenda Packet 
Providing Excel and PowerPoint as part of Presentation 






